# MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, MONDAY, MARCH 4, 1929 AT 8:00 P.M.

Present: His Worship Mayor Morden

Alderman Anderson Alderman Bridgman Alderman Cartwright Alderman White Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the Regular meeting of Council, held in the City Hall, on Monday, February 18<sup>th</sup>, 1929 and the Minutes of a Special meeting of Council held in the City Hall, on Monday, February 25<sup>th</sup>, 1929, copies of which had been supplied to each member of Council, were taken as read, and on motion of Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright, adopted.

Correspondence was received, read and dealt with as follows:

From the Brackman-Ker Milling Co., requesting that a few loads of gravel be placed in front of their store at 116 Esplanade East.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer with power to act.

From Thomas A. Patterson, 15<sup>th</sup> Street and Lonsdale Avenue, applying to have the lane graded and gravelled in Parcel A, Block 50, D.L. 549 (One Hundred block, 15<sup>th</sup> Street West) as it is his intention to build there in the very near future.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From H.A. Morrison,  $314 - 23^{rd}$  Street East, applying for a sidewalk to be constructed f from the corner of St. Andrew's Avenue to his residence.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee and City Engineer for report.

From Ruscombe Dennis,  $753 - 7^{th}$  Street East, applying for permission to install a 500 gallon Gasoline Tank at a Service Station on Lots 15 and 16, Block 142, D.L. 274, the Southwest corner of  $3^{rd}$  Street and St. Andrew's Avenue.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that permission be granted to Mr. Dennis to have this tank installed, subject to the construction of the tank being in accordance with City regulations, and approved by the City Engineer and City Fire Chief.

From Jane Sloan, 152 Broadway East, Vancouver, applying for permission to build a small Confectionery store about 20 x 30, with living rooms at the rear, on Lot 1/40/547, being the Southwest corner of 16<sup>th</sup> Street and Jones avenue. This is in Class "C" residence district, and a permit was refused by the City Building Inspector.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Appeal under Section 16 of the Town Planning Act. Mr. Sloan to be asked to submit a sketch of the proposed lay-out, and that he be given any necessary help required in the preparation of his sketch plan by the City Engineer.

From Mrs. G.T. Wallace,  $427 - 14^{th}$  Street East, applying to have a private driveway repaired by the City on Lot 7/58/550, upon which she resides, there being no lane provided for in the subdivision of that block.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be referred to the Sanitary Inspector as to garbage service and City Engineer for report as to the lane.

From D.G. Tate, C.M.C. District of North Vancouver under date of February 28<sup>th</sup>, advising that the District Council went on record as being in favour of all-night street lighting from the present time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Fire Chief submitting the report of the Fire Department for the month of January:

Alarms	7
Total risk	\$18,000.00
Total Insurance	\$12,700.00
Total Loss	\$2,175.00

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the report be received and filed.

From the City Engineer in respect tot eh complaint of Mrs. cross, 3031 Fromme Road, that the removal of gravel by the City from Lot 2/9/265, had depreciated the property, recommending:

- (a) That \$75.00 be paid for the removal of about 300 yards of gravel, on a Royalty basis of 25¢ per yard.
- (b) In the alternative that Mrs. Cross be offered the choice of any City lot assessed at \$300.00 in exchange for Lot 2/9/265 which is also assessed for \$300.00.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the report of the City Engineer be adopted, and that Mrs. Cross be given the choice of a settlement under recommendations (a) and (b), in respect to the alleged damage done to her property.

From the City Engineer submitting a standardised scale of wages for positions occupied by members of his staff.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Engineer in respect to the application of Harry Duker Ltd., for permission to rebuild:

- (a) Sign board on Lonsdale Avenue between 3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> Streets: "The sign at the corner of 4<sup>th</sup> Street and Lonsdale Avenue has already been constructed, and I find by measurement that one end of same projects onto Lonsdale Avenue. A portion of the sign is unpainted, and I do no approve of the design of the base. I would recommend that the company be notified to remove the portion of the sign which encroaches on Lonsdale Avenue".
- (b) Sign Boards on the southeast corner of Bewicke Avenue and Keith Road: "I would recommend that the Company be requested to submit a sketch of the proposed sign in order to determine whether the design is suitable or not, and whether the same should be painted".

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the recommendation of the City Engineer in each instance be adopted.

From W.A. Tolmie, tendering his resignation as an Alderman of the City of North Vancouver.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the resignation be accepted.

From the Provincial Surveyor of Taxes with a copy of a letter addressed to the Minister of Lands, Victoria, from W.H. MacFarlane, Walkerton, Ontario, pertaining to the assessment of properties owned by Mr. MacFarlane in the City of North Vancouver.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the communication be laid on the table until such time as the report of the Special assessment on Land Revision of the City has been submitted.

From E.H. Cowherd, 602 Seymour Street, Vancouver, applying for the use of Mahon Park on Wednesday, July 10<sup>th</sup>, 1929, for the Sunday School picnic of Shelton Memorial Church, 13trh and Cambie Street, Vancouver.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the privilege of using the Park be granted, provided the date requested is open.

From Geo. E. Bradwell,  $622 - 17^{th}$  Street West, North Vancouver, in respect to the remodelling of the building known as the Russell House,  $116 - 1^{st}$  Street East, stating that in his opinion the studding in front of the building is not strong enough to support the rest of the building. In this regard a communication was read from the City Building inspector, stating that:

"The foundation of the hold building was completely rotted away, the Contractor after bracing up the building taking out the decayed mudsills (which were resting on the hardpan) and cutting off the decayed studding, put a concrete wall 8" thick completely around the building, and laid a concrete floor covering the entire area of the ground floor.

The partitions, which were a single thickness of 1" x 4" tongue and groove lumber, were replaced with studding which will be lathed and plastered. At the present time these partitions were incomplete, and I have notified Mrs. Holtz not to cover any partitions until they have been inspected and passed by myself".

The side and rear walls of the building will be covered with rustic siding and the front stuccoed. My opinion is that this will greatly improve the appearance of the structure.

It will be necessary to put fire escapes on the front of the building, and also automatic fire alarms, before there will be any license issued to occupy this building".

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that both communications be received and filed.

From the City Building inspector reporting on the condition of the residence at 1668 Bewicke Avenue, situated in Block 25, D.L. 547, recently transferred by the City to the Board of School Trustees, and on which the Board recently advised that they did not care to assume any liability as to the residence. The Clerk reported that the tenant was paying to the City the sum of \$10.00 per month, the Board Secretary having advised that the Board of School Trustees did not wish to collect the rent.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that in consideration of the Inspector's report that the City assume the liability on the premises, renew the Fire Insurance when necessary, and collect the sum of \$10.00 monthly in rent.

From B.L. Johnson, Walton Co. Ltd., under date of February 19<sup>th</sup>, stating that they feel confident they can place the Marine Insurance on North Vancouver Ferry Number Three under exactly the same terms, conditions and rate as the Policies now in force, provided they are given a firm order by the City.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be laid over until tenders to be opened later have been considered.

From the City Solicitor with reference to the question of rental on the ferries lease from the Canadian Pacific Railway taken up by the Committee for the City with Mr. Lee of the Railway Company. In a reply Mr. Bateman, the Right-of-way Agent states: "I am prepared to recommend to our management the sum of \$2,000.00 as annual rental for the next five years, I would be pleased to hear from you at an early date as to whether this amount is acceptable to you".

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the offer of \$2,000.00 made by the Right-of-way Agent for the Canadian Pacific Railway as annual rental of the Vancouver Ferry Terminal for the next five years be accepted, and that a proposal be made to the Company that the rent be due and payable in quarterly instalments.

From the City Solicitor pointing out that in connection with the proposed Water Bylaw for \$15,000.00, plans of the proposed work have to be approved by the Department at

Victoria before the Bylaw can be submitted. The Engineer stated that the plans he submits will depend entirely on whether or not the water is required for a Flour Mill.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Water Bylaw be laid over until such time as the Flour Mill proposal is in more concrete form. The Bylaw can then be submitted at the same time as the Flour Mill Fixed Assessment Bylaw.

From the City Assessor reporting on the application of R.J. Trundle, Errington, V.I. for a tract of land with access to a good road suitable for a chicken ranch. The Assessor submitted the following properties subject to approval, for the purpose stated, under the provisions of the Town Planning Act:

Block 21, D.L. 616, 40 Lots, with lane through centre. 3 ¼ acres. Assessed value \$7,975. 20% value \$1,595. Yearly tax - \$334.95

Block 4, D.L. 616, Lots 13 to 18, No lane. 6 acres. Assessed value \$7,450. 20% value \$1,450. Yearly tax - \$312.90.

Block 201A, D.L. 544. Lots 1 to 26, including lane. 4 ½ acres. Assessed value \$7,010. 20% value \$1,400. Yearly tax - \$294.42.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the communication be referred to the Committee of the Whole.

From the City Engineer, Chief of Police and City Solicitor in respect to the traffic problem created by the entry of Pacific Stages at the North Vancouver Ferry Terminal.

A sketch of Block 177 was submitted in which it was proposed to route the buses, off Esplanade in a southerly direction down the lane in Block 177, thence in an easterly direction along the lane between the two tiers of lots in the Block, thence south down the lane to the Pacific Great Eastern Railway property, the buses to return along the right-of-way at the south of Block 177, and go due north along the lane to the Esplanade. The only objection to this is that Lot 25, which is at present used as a lane, is owned by the North Vancouver Land and Improvement Company.

The City Engineer stated that it would cost the sum of \$1,000.00 to grade, gravel and improve the lane suitable for bus traffic.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

Alderman Wilson drew attention to the danger to traffic coming in a westerly direction through the Indian Reserve on to Forbes Avenue, the buses travelling at a high rate of speed having accentuated the danger at that point.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Chief of Police and City Engineer be given power to act in the matter of investigating and placing a danger sign immediately adjacent to the Indian Reserve entrance on the westerly side of Forbes Avenue between Esplanade and 1<sup>st</sup> Street.

From the City Solicitor and City Engineer in respect to claim of \$2.75 from John S. Cameron for one pair of spats:

## From the City Engineer:

"I have examined the wooden walk in the two and three hundred blocks on 12<sup>th</sup> Street East, and find that the same was properly constructed in the first place".

## From the City Solicitor:

"The Engineer reports that the sidewalk in question was constructed in a proper manner when originally laid, under these circumstances I am of opinion that the City is not liable for the damage Mr. Cameron alleges he has suffered".

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the recommendation of the City Solicitor and City Engineer be adopted, and that the Insurance Company be notified of the claim and that a letter be forwarded denying the City's liability.

From the City Engineer submitting a report as a work of Local Improvement that a Sanitary Sewer be constructed on 27<sup>th</sup> Street form Lonsdale Avenue easterly to Tempe Crescent running North on St. George's Avenue to 29<sup>th</sup> Street and one block easterly on 28<sup>th</sup> Street and 29<sup>th</sup> Street at a total estimated cost of \$15,800.00.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Engineer's plan be adopted and that such reports, estimates, and statements be made, notices published and served, and Bylaws passed as shall be necessary to the proper passage of a bylaw authorizing the construction of a Sanitary Sewer under the provisions of the Local Improvement Act upon the Initiative Plan, as outlined in the schedule attached to the City Engineer's recommendation.

From J. Kirkland, Waterworks Caretaker at Lynn Creek Intake, applying for an increase in salary.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From Fred Whittaker, Relief man at the City Ferries, applying for an increase in wages.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

From the City Solicitor in respect to the proposed Bylaw to regulate the delivery and weight of coal, stating that the provisions of the Bylaw in the absence of public weigh scales being available in the City, should be made simple and practicable and at the same time effective enough to ensure that the dealer has every opportunity of checking any alleged shortage in weight, and pointing out that if ever public weight scales become available in the City the Bylaw would have to be redrawn.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the communication be laid on the table until the reading of the Bylaw later in the evening.

From the City Treasurer submitting report for the month of February showing receipts - \$19,550.05; disbursements - \$38,714.05.

Received and filed.

From D.S. Laverty,  $308 - 2^{nd}$  Street West, offering the sum of \$85 for the westerly half of Lot 34/126/271. The City owns Lots 33 and 34, on which a house is situated a portion of the residence being on Lot 34. Mr. Laverty is the owner of Lot 35, and would like to secure the west half of Lot 34 to increase the area of his property.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the communication be referred to Committee of the Whole.

# **TENDERS**

Tenders were received and opened for Marine Insurance on Ferry No. Three as follows:

Tenderer	Amount	Premium	Rate
J.W. Mahon	\$80,000.00	\$2,500.00	3.125 (Plus Policy
			Duty Stamps)
B.L. Johnson, Walton Co.	\$80,000.00	\$2,600.00	3.250
Jack Loutet & Co.	\$80,000.00	\$3,200.00	4.000

The letters of Johnson, Walton Co. and Jack Loutet and Co. had separate observations on "Franchise" and "Protection and Indemnity" clauses.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the tenders be referred to the City Solicitor for tabulation and report.

# TAX SALE LOTS

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application of the following local Real Estate Agents, acting for clients to purchase City properties at the price already set by Council to the North Vancouver Real Estate Association for cash or terms, be approved, and that the necessary bylaws be prepared and submitted to Council:

DEEDS:			
Property	Price	Name of Purchase	Agent
8/97/274-549	\$150	Agnes McLean Peers	L & B Co.
6/7/273	\$100	Marie Amalie Turville	Alex. Smith Co.
2/15/273	\$100	Ella May Turville	Alex. Smith & Co.
11/93/550	\$150	Muriel Gladys Rines	Alex. Smith& Co.
15/142/274	\$250	Ruscombe Dennis and Wm. Raymond	W.D. McFarland
		Mosher	
23/83/550	\$150	Levi Lauritsen	W.D. McFarland

13/132/274	\$200	St. Andrew's & Caledonian Society of North Vancouver	W.D. McFarland
14/93/550	\$150	Adda Evelyn Hogan	L.B. Howard
8/8/273	\$100	Henry H. Bower & Gertrude L. Bower	N.V. Realty Co.
39/167/274	\$300	Home Oil Distributors Ltd.	L.B. Howard
40/167/274	\$300	Home Oil Distributors Ltd.	L.B. Howard
41/167/274	\$300	Home Oil Distributors Ltd.	L.B. Howard
42/167/274	\$300	Home Oil Distributors Ltd.	L.B. Howard
AGREEMENTS	Ψοσο	Tiome on Distinguistic Ltd.	2.2.1.0114.14
s ½ 3/85/549	\$350	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
N ½ 3/85/549	\$350	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
6/119/274	\$500	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
4/126/274	\$800	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
24/120/274	\$250	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
30/134/271	\$200	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
25/140/274	\$200	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
17/139/274	\$200	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
12/10/273	\$175	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
11/10/273	\$110	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
56 & 57/167/274	\$600	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
58/167/274	\$300	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
19 & 20/155/274	\$400	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
5/157/271-4	\$150	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
6/157/271-4	\$150	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
7/157/271-4	\$150	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
8/157/271-4	\$150	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
13/155/274	\$250	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
15/155/274	\$250	Burnard Stuart Thomson	J. Loutet
29/155/274	\$250	George Robert McQueen	J. Loutet
27/126/274	\$200	George Robert McQueen	J. Loutet
3A/5.6.7/86/548-9	\$300	N.V. Business Properties Ltd.	I & B Co.
50/167/274	\$300	George Robert McQueen	I & B Co.
45/167/274	\$300	Burnard Stuart Thomson	I & B Co.
53/167/274	\$300	Burnard Stuart Thomson	I & B Co.
54/167/274	\$300	Burnard Stuart Thomson	I & B Co.
46/167/274	\$300	Burnard Stuart Thomson	I & B Co.
22/138/271	\$200	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	A. Smith Co.
23/138/271	\$200	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	A. Smith Co.
24/138/271	\$200	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	A. Smith Co.
12/7/273	\$175	John Henry Cates	N.V. Realty
9/95/550	\$125	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	A. Smith Co.
9/97/274-549	\$150	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	I & B. Co.
10/97/274-549	\$200	Dr. Hilmer S. Simonson	I & B. Co.

Reports and recommendations by the Finance, Police, Board of Works, Waterworks, School, Ferry, Health, Parks and Fire and Light Committees, on due accounts were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts to the amounts following:

Finance Police		\$1,865.00 \$1,480.00
Board of Works	\$478.75	. ,
	<u>802.72</u>	\$1,281.47
Waterworks	\$395.25	
	<u>595.39</u>	\$990.64
Health	\$351.50	
	<u>140.00</u>	\$491.50
Parks	\$245.00	
	<u>5.06</u>	\$250.06
Fire & Light		\$1,800.00

## REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the following report of the Finance Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the proposed exchange of properties with N. Sundbakken be not affected. The City Solicitor in part report as follows:

"It appears to me that Mr. Sundbakken is trying to have the City take property which neither he nor the City want, in exchange for the balance due by him to the City on improved property, it is perfectly evident that Mr. Sundbakken must complete his payments on the improved property, and as the 1927 and 1928 taxes are due on the unimproved property it would appear that the City is going to get this property any way".

RECOMMEND that after the fullest consideration of Better Housing Loan, J.S. Rogers, it is not possible to accede to his request to withdraw the writ issued, but provided Mr. Rogers makes good the recent cheque for \$70, returned "N.S.F." and assigns from his pay, through the Company he is working for, the sum of \$35.00 every month, the Committee will again consider his application of March 1<sup>st</sup>.

RECOMMEND that the statement of relief distributed during February by the City Relief Officer, totalling \$811.10, be laid on the table.

Monthly Assistance	\$80.00
City cases at Institutions	\$303.10
Supplies to Indigents	<u>\$428.00</u>
	\$811.10

RECOMMEND that the list of groceries submitted by the City Relief Officer be adopted as a standard in administering relief to Indigents and that the local merchants be advised that the same must not be departed form unless very sound reasons are given by those who present the orders.

RECOMMEND that the sum of \$500.00 be set aside to be spent under the supervision of the City Engineer in providing Relief work throughout the City, and that in all cases where there is a man able to work in a family that is getting, or applies for relief, that man must do the work provided by the City at the relief rate of pay.

From Staff-Captain H. Chas. Tutte, of the Salvation Army, stating that he desired the privilege of sending a special representative to visit and address Council in connection with a more adequate provision for the Army's Social work throughout the Province.

RECOMMEND that the Agent for the Salvation Army be advised that Council have provided for a \$50.00 grant in the Estimates and as in former years have granted exemption from taxes on the Army's place of Worship, they cannot possible do any more as the Estimates have been adopted for this year, they will, however be pleased to hear from a special representative of the Army on its Social Work at any time convenient to the Speaker.

RECOMMEND that the Agents of the Salvation Army be advised that the lot on which the "Salvation Army Meeting Hall" is erected, will be exempt from taxation during 1929, as in past years, provided a Statutory declaration is filed stating that no rental is charged or paid by parties occupying the upper portion of the building, and that the building is being used exclusively for the purposes of the Army.

RECOMMEND that the Committee note an increase in the salary of the School board's Secretary for the current year from \$240 to \$250 per month, in addition to the customary monthly car allowance of \$12.50.

This is noted in view of the fact that it is incumbent on all elected Bodies to make every effort to keep their expenses down so that the tax rate can be kept within present limits.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the following report of the Board of Works Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the City's Air Compressor be loaned for a few days, at the City's convenience, to the B.I.T.& B. Co. in connection with chiselling a gutter in the concrete roadway approaching the bridge in order to drain away the water which stands there at present.

RECOMMEND that the boulders on the Boulevard of the School property Lots A and B, Block 111, D.L. 547, be removed, subject to the Street Improvement Bylaw 1929, be passed.

RECOMMEND that the application of the School Board be granted to remove rocks from the High School grounds and deposit them in the fill at the proposed new Athletic Park in Block 216, after the work has been properly laid out.

RECOMMEND that subject to the passing of the proposed Street Improvement Bylaw 1929, the boulevards on the street opposite the High School Grounds be graded as suggested by the Board of School Trustees.

RECOMMEND that the application of M.S. Campbell be granted, to have some gravel placed on 5<sup>th</sup> Street between Chesterfield Avenue and Mahon Avenue, where required. The sidewalk referred to in the complaint of Mr. Campbell is in good condition.

RECOMMEND that the application of M.E. Cluness to have the ditch closed in with a box drain in front of Lot 6/112A be granted providing the sum of \$16.50 is deposited with the City Treasurer to pay for the cost of the lumber for the drain.

RECOMMEND that the application of W.A. MacDowall of 906 – 16<sup>th</sup> Street West, be granted, to have a three plank sidewalk constructed on the west side of Winch Avenue, from Keith Road to 16<sup>th</sup> Street, a length of 250 feet at an estimated cost of \$75.00.

RECOMMEND that the application of Jas. Badger for consideration of the construction of a concrete sidewalk on the north side of 21<sup>st</sup> Street between Lonsdale Avenue and Chesterfield Avenue be favourably entertained, and that this be placed on the list of concrete sidewalks proposed to be constructed during the year 1929.

RECOMMEND that Chesterfield Avenue be cleared, graded and gravelled between 24<sup>th</sup> Street and 25<sup>th</sup> Street, at an estimated cost of \$300 providing the Road Construction Bylaw is approved by the Ratepayers.

RECOMMEND that the application of J.W. Holland be granted, to have a lane opened form 25<sup>th</sup> Street to Lot 12/B/215, a length of 66 feet at an estimated cost of \$25.00. In order to carry out this work it will be necessary to have a garage removed which is at present located on the proposed lane.

RECOMMEND that the application of D. Brown be granted, to have some boulders removed from between the sidewalk and the road in front of  $157 - 27^{th}$  Street East. These boulders appear to have been placed there during the grading and paving of  $27^{th}$  Street, and are not part of the original boulevard.

RECOMMEND that the application of C.S. Thomson of 312 – 24<sup>th</sup> Street East be granted, to have a lane opened tot eh rear of Lots 23 and 24, Block 218A, D.L. 546, a distance of 150 feet at an estimated cost of \$75, provided the Street Improvement Bylaw is approved by the ratepayers.

RECOMMEND that the application of F.E. Gifford of 624 – 14<sup>th</sup> Street East be granted to have a three plank crossing constructed across the ditches in front of his house to give access to the sidewalk on the opposite side of the Street.

RECOMMEND that the application of Miss E.M. Boult of 339 – 13<sup>th</sup> Street East be granted, to have a three plank crossing constructed across the ditches in front of the above address to give access to the sidewalk on the opposite side of the road.

RECOMMEND that the application of E.R. Millard of 535 – 10<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted to have a crossing constructed in the ditch to give access to the lane at the east side of Lot 7/94/550, and that the said lane be made passable to the rear of the lot. The lane is already cleared.

RECOMMEND that the application of T. Moffort of  $529 - 8^{th}$  Street East, be granted to have the lane improved along the east side of the above address to give access to a garage at the rear. The lane is already cleared.

RECOMMEND that the application of France M. Rashleigh of 423 – 6<sup>th</sup> Street East, be granted to have some gravel placed on 6<sup>th</sup> Street from St. David's Avenue about 400 feet easterly, where the road is in very bad condition.

RECOMMEND that the application of Laura Graham and Jas. Dennison be dealt with by constructing a three plank crossing across the roadway in front of 318 – 6<sup>th</sup> Street East, instead of constructing some 200 feet of sidewalk, at a cost of \$100, as petitioned for, I would also recommend that the application of the above be granted to have the lane graded and gravelled where necessary at the rear of said lots from St. David's Avenue westerly to a point within 100 feet of St. Andrew's Avenue at an estimated cost of \$100.00.

Alderman Wilson drew attention to the bad smell arising from ditch on Mahon Avenue running from the south side of Ottawa Gardens to the south side of 4<sup>th</sup> Street.

RECOMMEND that the outlet be examined and the ditch be flushed every week.

RECOMMEND that work on the six inch sanitary sewer on the north side of Keith Road from the west side of Jones Avenue to the east side of Forbes Avenue be started without delay.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the following report of the Fire and Light Committee be adopted:

From the City Fire Chief submitting the revised scale of salaries now being paid to members of the Fire Department.

RECOMMEND that the communication be referred back to the Fire Chief for amendment, the Committee had in mind the submission of a standardised scale of wages, setting forth a minimum on commencing salary, graded up to a considered maximum according to length of service and good conduct record.

RECOMMEND that the blank application form for a position in the Fire Department as submitted by the Fire Chief be adopted. The form sets out in detail the standards required of an applicant for a permanent position in the department, and is more or less in accordance with precedent established.

RECOMMEND that the suggestion of the Fire Chief be adopted that all members of the Fire Department be given a "First Aid" course of training in a class that is now being formed, and that the fee of \$3.00 per member be paid by the City out of the Committee appropriation.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the following report of the Parks Committee be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the following requests, relative to the 1929 Baseball Season at Mahon Park, from R.A. Sargent, President of the North Shore Baseball League, be referred to the Parks Committee for consideration and report:

- 1. A strip of netting along the ridge of the grandstand to prevent foul tips from bouncing over.
- 2. The meeting at present on the front of the grandstand to be changed and attached to the fence so that the two bottom rows of seats would be available to spectators.
- 3. Steps be built along the north and south side of the grandstand.
- 4. The various entrances to the grandstand be altered so that they can be locked.
- 5. A crows nest be arranged for the scorer in the top of the grandstand.
- 6. A bylaw be passed by the Council which would enable the League legally to collect an entrance fee to the grandstand.
- 7. The Mahon Park field to be devoted exclusively to Baseball.
- 8. The hard cricket pitch in the centre of the field to be replaced.

RECOMMEND that after hearing Mr. A.E.T. Eckford, Secretary of the Horticultural Society on the prevalence of Lacanium Scale and the necessity of combating the spread of the pest throughout the City, that the City purchase approximately two barrels of a suitable spray or impulsion for the free use of the City or City residents, the distribution to be supervised by the Horticultural Society, arrangements to be left in the hands of Mr. Eckford and the Clerk.

RECOMMEND that prizes in the amounts of \$15, \$10 and \$5 be awarded for the best kept Boulevards throughout the City. All residents of the City to be invited to compete and the judges in the Contest to be officials of the Horticultural Society. The members of the Press agreed to give due publicity.

RECOMMEND that the City Solicitor submit an opinion on the liability of all owners or occupants of land to cut down, burn or effectively destroy all noxious weeds growing in their property and to control or eliminate all diseases or paste with which trees or orchards on their property have become infected.

## MOTIONS

Alderman Anderson reading from a clipping from the "Vancouver Star" of Saturday, March 2<sup>nd</sup>, with reference to Alderman Tolmie's resignation, to wit:

"Failure of Mayor G.H. Morden to use his services in the best interests of the City as the ratepayers have a right to expect, was given by Alderman W.A. Tolmie as to reason for forwarding his resignation to the City Clerk".

Alderman Anderson considered that Mayor Morden had undoubtedly carried out the duties of his Office in a most conscientious manner, without favour or hindrance to any member of the Aldermanic Board, and always in what he believed was the best interests of the City as a whole. The Alderman further stated that personally he was opposed to the sentiment conveyed in the statement attributed to Alderman Tolmie in the "Star", and he believed that his colleagues on the Council were of the same opinion. He therefore, moved that the Council's confidence in His Worship Mayor Morden be so recorded in the Minutes; the motion being put was unanimously passed.

Mayor Morden thanked the members of Council for their expression of confidence. As Mayor of the City he always tried to conduct the duties of the Chair in an absolutely impartial manner, and stated that he was pleased the Aldermen were convinced that the imputation in the article referred to was unjust.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that on account of the resignation of Alderman W.A. Tolmie, that his office as an Alderman of the Corporation of the City of North Vancouver be and the same is hereby declared vacant.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the time and place for nominations for Alderman to fill the vacancy caused by the resignation of Alderman W.A. Tolmie, be held in the Council Chamber, City Hall, North Vancouver, on March 15<sup>th</sup>, 1929, between the hours of 12 o'clock noon, and two o'clock p.m. and that the Returning Officer for the election shall be Geo. S. Shepherd, with the usual powers in that behalf, and that the place at which a poll shall be opened in the Municipality of the City in case a poll is required, shall be number 115 – 1<sup>st</sup> street East, in the City of North Vancouver.

#### **BYLAWS**

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (Rogers to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (Rogers to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (Rogers to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Esplanade (Rogers to Forbes) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Second Street (St. Andrew's to Lot 7/153/274) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled ""City of North Vancouver Second Street (St. Andrew's to Lot 7/153/274) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled ""City of North Vancouver Second Street (St. Andrew's to Lot 7/153/274) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Second Street (St. Andrew's to Lot 7/153/274)

Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Fourth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Fourth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Fourth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Fourth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver"

Sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – North (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – South (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – South (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – South (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixth Street – South (Chesterfield to Mahon) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Moody to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Moody to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Moody to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Moody to Queensbury) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – West (Keith to Fifteenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – West (Keith to Fifteenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – West (Keith to Fifteenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – West (Keith to Fifteenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – East (Fifteenth to Seventeenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – East (Fifteenth to Seventeenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929"be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – East (Fifteenth to Seventeenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929"be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Bewicke Avenue – East (Fifteenth to Seventeenth) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - North (Chesterfield to Jones) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929"be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw. Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Sixteenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Seventeenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw. Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Seventeenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Seventeenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929"be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Seventeenth Street - South (Lonsdale to Chesterfield) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - West (Twentieth to Bewicke) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - West (Twentieth to Bewicke) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - West (Twentieth to Bewicke) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - West (Twentieth to Bewicke) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - East (Twentieth to Twenty-third) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - East (Twentieth to Twenty-third) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - East (Twentieth to Twenty-third) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Larson Road - East (Twentieth to Twenty-third) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-first Street – North (Larson to View) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-first Street – North (Larson to View) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-first Street – North (Larson to View) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-first Street – North (Larson to View) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-second Street – North (St. George's to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw. Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-second Street – North (St. George's to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-second Street – North (St. George's to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-second Street – North (St. George's to St. Andrew's) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-third Street – North (Mahon to Larson) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-third Street – North (Mahon to Larson) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-third Street – North (Mahon to Larson) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-third Street – North (Mahon to Larson) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City

of North Vancouver Twenty-fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to west side of Lot 22/214A/545) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to west side of Lot 22/214A/545) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to west side of Lot 22/214A/545) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Twenty-fourth Street – North (Chesterfield to west side of Lot 22/214A/545) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Ridgeway to Moody) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Ridgeway to Moody) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929"be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Ridgeway to Moody) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – South (Ridgeway to Moody)

Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – North (Queensbury to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – North (Queensbury to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – North (Queensbury to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Keith Road – North (Queensbury to Ridgeway) Concrete Sidewalk Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Nineteenth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Nineteenth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver"

Nineteenth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Nineteenth Street (Lonsdale to St. Andrew's) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Eight and Tenth Streets (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Eight and Tenth Streets (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Eight and Tenth Streets (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Eight and Tenth Streets (Lonsdale to Ridgeway) Sanitary Sewer Local Improvement Debenture Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929"be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the vote of the electors of the City of North Vancouver will be taken on the 18<sup>th</sup> day of March 1929 between the hours of eight o'clock a.m. and eight o'clock p.m. on "The City of North Vancouver Street Improvement and Construction Loan Bylaw 1929" at 115 – 1<sup>st</sup> Street East, in the City of North Vancouver, and that Geo. S. Shepherd be appointed Returning Officer to take the vote of the said electros with the necessary powers in that behalf.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "Mayor and Aldermen's Indemnity Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Mayor and Aldermen's Indemnity Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "Mayor and Aldermen's Indemnity Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "Mayor and Aldermen's Indemnity Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time. Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 3" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 3" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 3" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 3" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Voting for: Mayor Morden, Aldermen, Anderson, Bridgman, Cartwright, White and Wilson.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 4" and that the said Bylaw receive three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw.

Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 4" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 4" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "City of North Vancouver Land Sales Bylaw 1929, No. 4" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Voting for: Mayor Morden, Aldermen, Anderson, Bridgman, Cartwright, White and Wilson.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of the Council, a Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Coal Weighing Bylaw 1929" and that the said Bylaw receive

three readings at this meeting of the Council, and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure Bylaw. Whereupon the Bylaw was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman Anderson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Coal Weighing Bylaw 1929" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Coal Weighing Bylaw 1929" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Coal Weighing Bylaw 1929" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "The City of North Vancouver Highways Dedication Bylaw No. 2, 1929" be now reconsidered.

Whereupon the Bylaw was read and reconsidered.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Bridgman and resolved that the Bylaw as read and reconsidered be now finally passed, signed by the Mayor and City Clerk and sealed with the Corporate Seal. No. 1025.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that this Council do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole.

Alderman Wilson was appointed Chairman.

### IN COMMITTEE

# **IN COUNCIL**

Moved by Alderman White, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the foregoing report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

The City Solicitor verbally reported on the three tenders for Marine Insurance on Ferry Number three.

Moved by Alderman Wilson that the Mayor, Alderman Anderson, Alderman Bridgman and Alderman White and the City Solicitor be a Special Committee in the matter with power to act.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman that he District Clerk be advised that the City is now prepared to discuss the Gas Franchise with the B.C. Power Co. Ltd., also requesting that the District Council expedite their decision on the terms of the Agreement now before them, so that both Solicitors can proceed together in the matter of arranging more satisfactory terms, should that be necessary.

Moved by Alderman Bridgman, seconded by Alderman White and resolved that the meeting adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned.

Signed: G.H. Morden, Mayor